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1. • MARC COHODES -
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. 11 

- UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT .• . . . . . ' 

• · NORTHERNDISTRICTOFCALIFORNIA --. . ' . . 

MARC CQHODE-S,· an individual, -
• • i2 • 

Case No.· ------

· 13 · 

• ·• 14 

. 15 _ 
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- -18 

• · 19 

- .20. · 
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- •· 22 

23 -

24 

.·• •25. 

26 

27 

28 

.,_· Plaintiff, 

. ' . . . . . . -
• -- . ' . • . . - . • . . -' . • • 

.MJJv1EDX GROUP,• INC;, a Florida • 
corporation;.DERRICK SNOWDY, an •• 
individual; and DANIEL GUY~ an 
individual, • 

• Defendants. 

. ' . • - . . • • 

• COMPLAINTFORDAMAGESAND_ •• -
: INJUNCTIVE RELIEF • - • 

' . . . . . . . . . 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL --

CO:MPLAlNT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF-_ 
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SUMMARYOFTHEACTION- -

1. - - Plaintiff Marc Cohodes is aformerhedge fund manager, a long~time stock market -

3 analyst, and a short seller.: Over his 40.,year career as an investor and furld manager, Cohodes --

_. 4 --has exposed mariy:publicly traded companies:arid individuals who were enga.ged in fraud, illegal - ---
. ·-.... ··, . •. . . --. . . . . . • . . . . . . - •• . •• . • . . •• .. ' . • . . . ••. 

• 5 conduct; qllestio_nable accounting,: and stock manipulation," including Lemout &, Hauspie, Media _ -

6 - Vision: Technology, NovaStar Financi~l, Are111iSoft, -California Micro Devices, Network 

: 7 _ Associates, Take Two Interactive, Krispy Kreme ])onuts, Boston Chicken, MiMedx Group Inc.~ • 

- -- 8 . arid other~. His successful investigat1ons of fraud in the -firiancial_markets·have been described: - --
. . . .. . . . . . . . . -

9 _ and applau.dedin The Wall Street Journal, The New York Times, Barron's, Bloomberg, 
-. ' . . . - . 

. ' ' . . . . - . . . . . . . . . 

• 10 : Institutfonallnvestor, CNN, award-winning books about financial-fraud, andtwo Harvard • 

11 - business_ cases, among others. 
- . . . . . . . - - . . -

- -12 • 2. -- .. - Cohodes's s11ccess in.exposing fraud~ has earne_dhiin enen1ies as well as •• : 

_ 13. accoladys. In this case, his enemies sought to retaliate against him by breakingthelaw- _ 

: ·• 14 _ sending an_unlicensed private investigator to befriend Cohodes on false:pretenses~ havirigthe 
. . - . . - . - . . - - . . . . 

15 _ investigator iffegallyrecordCohodes's phone calls,aild then selectively- disclosing, distorting,_-_- ---

• -_ 16 and misrepresenting Cohodes' s phone calls, emails, and private conversations in an effort to 
- - . . . ' . - . . . . . . ' . . . - . . - - ' . - . -

17 datnage his reputation and rindern1ine his credibility with public securiti~s 1nark~ts and _ 

18 

19 

regulatory :~uthorities in the United States and Canada._ 
. . • . . . - . . • . . .• 

- .·' .• . : . .• •.. · • ' . ' . . . . : - •. · : .· • . . : '.· • : ..•. 

3.- - . :- Derrick Snowdy is a private investigator who lied to Cohodes and Cohodes's • 
. . . . . . ' . . - ' -

_ 20. acquaintances to gain access to Cohodes arid learn information about Coho des' s business and 
: -. . '·. :- - : . -_ : •. :-· : • : . . . • • •. •.. : :- : ._ :-· ','. • . :- •• 

- 21- his efforts to_ expose fraud~_ and then unlawfully recm~ed C_ohodes 's telephone conversations: 

22 _ - _ 4. - - Daniel Guy is tlie ·Chief InvestmeritOfficer and Director of Harrington Global, a - : • 

- _ -23 hedge furid that iostmoney by investing in ail overvalued company that ·cohodes exposed'. Guy -

• 24 • hired Snowdy to spy oh Cohodes and to record Cohodes;s phone calls; paying.him $25~000 per _ -

25 _ month. -Then Guy .. ancl Snowdy ~ied to shop the illegal recordirlgs _and th~ improperly obtained _--_-

- 26 information to -yet another company, Callidus Capital; falsely claiming that Cohocles ~as part of 
• . . . • • • . . . - . • • . - - . ' . ' - - . . . 

• 27 a criminal :conspiracy to irianiplilate -Callidus' s shares_ arid launder _111oriey: Cohodes was harmed -
. . . ' . . . . . . . - . . 

_ 28 _ by these actio~s, which invaded his privacy,damaged his reputation,and forced him to iricµr 

• : _ COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF -. - --
1 
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• • • • 1 legal' fees to investig~te the. scope of the intrusions and to: defend himself against false 

. 2 aUegatiorts of illegalbehavior: 

. .3 • 5. > • MiMedx Group Inc.is a publicly traded company. Cohodes discovered in around-. 
. . . - . . - . . . . . . 

• . 4 September2017 that MiMedx was. engaged 1n fraudulent accounting. in resp on~~ to Cohodes; s · •• 

• 5 • warpingsto the market, MiMedx e~gaged in a far-reaching campaign to defame .Cohodes, to 
. . . . . . ' . . -

• 6 • discredithim, and to convince law enforcement that he, riot MiMedx, was engaged in crunin~l . 
••. . .:_ . . .:_ - . •. . .:_ - . •. . .• : . - ...• : - .: - .. :_ .. 

· 7 conduct. ThCJse· efforts included hiring Snowdy in December 2017, just as Guy had done,to 

• • 8 continue to spy on: Cohodes, illegally recm4 ·his phone calls, and obtain and disclose: his private • • 

9 communications. . • • .. > • 

· 10: . 6: • ·: Whikthese illegal a~tions did cau~e Cohod~s harm,theydid notachieve. 
- - . ' - . -

• 11 • MiMedx' s larger goals: ultimately MiMedx' s chief executive officer, Parker Petit; artd its chief • 
. . ' . . . . . . . . . 

• i2 . operating officer, wmiamTaylor~were 6onvicted of a rnulti~mmion-dbllar scheme to inflate ••• 

13. MiMedx's revenue and they were'sentencedto prison; MiMedx's audit committee concluded 
. . . . . - . - - . . . . . . . 

• • • 14 _that the con1pany ha,d to restate bver five years of financial statements as tnaterially false; And .• • 

. 15 an intemalinvestigation conclud.ed that MiMedx and Petit had responded to intetjial employee • 
. . - . . . . . . . . . . 

• 16 concerns about hnproper>accounting by imple111enting_ a "secret video surveillance system" that •. · 

17 

.•• 18 

recordedmanagementinterviews ofeinployees andthose.employees; discussion~ amongst· 

themselves "without those employees' knowledge or consent," and then used the improperly .. • 
. . . .' - • • . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• · 19 obt~ined recordings to retaliate against whistleblower~ and falsely accuse them of wrongdoing.· 
. - . . • . • - • - . . . ' . . • . . • • . - . . • - . . - . • ' . . . 

20 • 7 .. •• From 2016to 2019, Cohodesspoke on the phone with Snow<;iy scores, perhaps • 
. . . . - - - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 • even hµndreds~ of times. Coh()des had, no lrnowledge or suspicion ofSriowdy's illegal • 
. ; : .· .: - _: : .• : : ,; - . . . . - . . . . . . . . . 

22 recordings, or ofSriciwdy's, Guy's, andMiMedx's illegal use ofthem;untilMay of 2021. At 
. . . - . . . 

. . . . . . . . . . - . . . . . 

• 23 . that time, . a Canadian:, court unsealed records that revealed that Snowdy actually: had been : . 

24 working for Guy, that he had been re.cording Cohodes's phcme calls, and that he and Guy had • 

• • 25 mischaracterized those re.cordings and Cohodes' s other communications to falsely- accuse him of 

· 26 crimes .. Jri response. to· a reporter's questions about .those documents, Snowdy admitted that he · • 

27 · had a phcm~ that ~utomaticaily recorded all calls to that number: Then~ in August 202 l, a hedge .• 

. 28. 

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJC.iNCTIVE RELIEF • 
2 
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< • I' . fundthat was suing MiMedx and its outside cqunselpersuaded a:courtto unseal records that .. : • 

.. 2 MiMedx and its counsel had produced in discovery, reveaHng for the first time that Snowdy had •· 
. . . . . - . . . . . 

> 3 also approached MiMedx and the company had also hired himto spy on Cohodes, obtain 
. ' . - • . • ' ' . . • . • • . . • . . . • . 

. 4 "drafts'' of tweets and articles before theywere publisheqand learn who "participated on any 

•. • . 5 calls, emails, or group messages'' with Cohodes, along with other inform:ation that could not be •·. 
. . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 • obtained through lawful ·means. • 

. 7 PARTIES, ·.: 

8 · 8. • • . Plaintiff Marc Cohodes is ~ individualwho res1des i~ Montana and is a citizen of • 

. 9 Montana, At the time of the ev:ents that are relevant to this lawsuit, Cohodes resided in Sonoma 
. . . . ' 

10 • County, California and was a citizen of California. 

11 9. • •· • • On mforination ancfbelief, Defendailt Derrick Snowdy is an·individualwho. • 
. . . . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

•. 12 • resides in Toronto, Ontarib, Canada and is a Canadian citjzen .• 

. 1~. 

14 

1.0. • On information and belief, Defendant Daniel Guy is an individual who resides in • 
. . . . . . 

Bermuda and is a Canadian citizen .• 
·_ ...•. • ·_. :· .• • •. • . • . :· • . .• ' ...• • • ·_... .-· ·: ': ..... • . .• •. . • 

. 15. 11. • • On infonnation and belief, Defenqarit MiMedx Group Inc. faa corporation • 
. ' . . . . . . . . . . 

: • 16 organized under the laws of Florida with its•principai place of business in Marietta, Georgia .. •. • 
. . . . . . . 

J 7 • .JURISDICTION AND VENUE •• 

·_ .: 18 • J2; ·. · The Court has subject matter jurisdiction under 28U.S.C. §J331; as this case· 

• 19 in"~lves questions of federal law. 

• • 20. • 13. •• The Court. also has sU:bject_ matte~ jurisdiction under 28 U:S.C. '§1332(a) because • 
' . . . • . • . . • . • • . . . • . . . . . . • - • . . • . . • . . 

21 the action involves a dispute between Gitiz~ns of difforentcountries. Plaintiff Cohodes is a· •• 

. . 22 . resident and citizen of Montana, DefendantMiMedx is a corporationincorpo~ated in Florida : • 
. •. •.• • ·. • • •.•• . •.• . • . .· •. ·. · .. -· • ·.· .. ·.· • ·. ·. • ·. · .. 

• . . 23 . with: its principal place of _business in Georgia; Defendant Snowdy is a resident and citizen of • 

• 24 Canada; and Defendant Guy is a resident of Bemmda and citizen of Canada. Th~refore, • 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• 25 • complete dhrersity of citiz~nship e~ists.• • The_ an1ount in c~ntroversy~ including th~ val~e ~fbotl1 . 

26 • monetary and injunctive relief, arid exclusive of interests and costs, exceeds the sum or value of 
. . . . . . 

27 · $75,00_0; : •••. 

28 

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. 
3 
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•. 14; .... This:Court has personaljurisdictionover·SnowdYbecause, as part of the scheme •. 

·•.2 to surveil Cohodes, Snowdy physically tra;elledto•califomia and conducted business in the 
• ~ . ' . 

. > : 3 state by meeting with and surveilling Cohodes at his Sonoma, California home;- by unlawfully : : · 

• .. 4 recording at 1east • 9ne phone call that Cohodes made while in California; and by otherwi.se •••• 

• 5 • trnv~ling to California t~ "infiltrate'~ a supposed conspiracy of stock manipulators, one of whom 

6 • was purportedly Cohocies. His scheme targeted California and Cohodes ':s. activities in • 

• 7.. California. This Court likewise has personai jurisdiction :over (Juy because Sno~dywasat all: :· 

• • 8 relevan,t times acting as Guy's·agerit and at Guy's dh'ectio11, incltiding S~owdy?s actions in and •• • 

. 9 . directed atCalif~rnia,. Cohodes's.claims ari~e out of Snowdy's and Guy's plot to nieetwith and_ • 

10 . ·surveil_ Cohodes in California. . . . . . . . 
. . - • ' . • ' . . . . . • . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . 

- . . . . 

• 11 • 15.. ·. • This Court has personal jurisdiction.. over MiMedx because_ MiMedx engaged .• · 
. ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - . . - . . . . . . .. 

• 12 Snowdy to unlawfully spy.on Cohodes in California ~d illegally record phone ~alls that.· 

. 1~ Cohodes made in California. Further, at the time· of the events in question, MiMedx was 
. - - . . ' . . ' . . . 

• : 14 . registered to. do business in the Sfate .of California, and did do business in California, th~ugh its • • 

. 15 . current status is forfeited. • MiMedx had and has extensive and pervasive contacts with the. State 

• • • 16 . of California .• According to_ its corporate website,. it holds a California tissue bank license from •. 
. .. . . . ' . . . . . . . . ' 

.17 the Califcirni~ Department of Public Health; ithas conducted clihlcal education programs at : . · • 

:: 18 medical facilities in California; it has sold its products directly to medical.faciHties in C.alifornia; 

• 19 it h~~ filed suit as: a plaintiff in feq~ral courts in California on claiins arising fro~ its commercial 

• • . 20 • activities ir1 the state and_ submitted to jurisdiction here; and it has full time employees \Vorking • 

21. ··:for the.company in California: • 
. • .• : .: . .. _; .: .: 

. 22 • •. 16~. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 u:s.C; § 139l(b)(2)because a 
· 23 . substantial part of the events or omissions. giving rise to the cl~iins. occtrrred in this Di~trict • · • •• 

24 

25. 

. DMSIONAL ASSIGNMENT • • 
.• . . . .· . . . - .. • . . . .- . - . . . . 

• · i7: ·> Assigiw.ent to. the San Francisco or Oakland Division ofthisJ)istrfot is proper. · 

26 pursuant t~ CivHLocal Rule 3~2( c)~( d) because a substantial part of the ~vents or omissions • • 

27 • giving .ri~e to the daims occurred in Sonoma County. • 

28 

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
4 
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. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

' ''' A. Daniel Gu:y and Harrington Global Opportunity Fund's Failed Investment in '' ' 
• Concordia Healthcare • • • • 

. 18; < In or around October2015.; Cohodes beg~m.:building a·"shtirt'' position in the• -· 

Canadi8.l;l pharmaceutical cqmparty Concordia Healthcare; Investors "short" a stock by 
' ... 5 ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '' ' ' '' ' ' ' ' 

borrowing i1 security and selling it on the open market with the intention of buying it backlater: •• 
6 

·for-less money, _and then returningitto the originanender. Investors thus short a stock~hen 

•• 
7 

they believeit is ·oven,aluedbythe market and its price wiUdecline in the future~ .•• 
8 ' ' ' ' ' ' - ' ' ' ' ' ' 

Cohcides was aware that Concordia's chief executive •offi9i~r, MarkThompson, had previously· .• 
9 

been ai-i executive at a different pharmaceutical company, Biovail, which had engaged in. 
10. ' '. ' '' '' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' - ' . ' -

significantaccountiliK fraud and p~id millions of dollars. t~ • settle claims· by the Securities and •• 
11 

Exchange: Commission.· Cohodes pointed out th_at the company irlcurred:enormous debt to buy • 
. 12 · . . . · - · - · . · . · · . · · · .. · · · . 

up ·companies and ·prescript1on_drugs that sold for modest ·amounts; with the· goal. of e~g -•• 
' -13- · · · · · - - - - · 

large profits by increasing the price of these well "'.established drugs by 1000% or more. If the . 
. ·· 14 . . : - · .. - : · - : : · · . : ·.· · .• :· • : · • : : .· - -·. ·. - . : - • : : : 

compariy could not ·charge those inflated prices, it would be unable. to: repay its- substantial debt. • 
. 15 · · · · · · · · · 

. AsCohodes expected, increased-~wareness ofpharmace~tical price"luke-~ led to heightened • 
· ·: 16 · · · · · · · · · · · · · - · · · · · · · · - · · · - · · 

political' scrutiny of drug pri¢es and made business mod~ls dependent on sizeable drug price •• 
17 

increases; like Con:cordia Healthcare's, unsustainable~ Concordia's Healthcate's·business model · 
. 18 . . · · · . . · - . . . . · · .. - . · . 

was.thu~ thr~atened,.apartfoulariy disastrous result giventhe_ccnnpany's ·approxim~tely $4 · 
19 

billion of debt.· In response to these events, Concordia Healthcare' s sJ:iare price dropped 
: 20 • · · · 

precipitously .. 
21 

19 .• In June 2016~-Concordia CEO Thmripsoilsued Cohodes for defamatimirelated to .•• 
22 

• Cohodes's:crfricisiils ofThompsoh and Concordia. Shortly thereafter, a~ reported in Th~ Wall•: -
23 

Street Journal; th~ company repolied significant asset-wrjte-downs; low~red its ~ales and • 
24-

25 

26 

• :21 · 

. 28. 

profitability projections, announced. its finance· chief would step down; and suspended its 
. • . . • . . • . . . . . . . . • . . . . ' . . ' . . • . . . . - • • . . . ' 

dividend.· Thompson ultimately ~e~igned from Concordia ~d agreedto:dismiss his lawsuit - • 
. . . . . . ' . . . . . 

against Collodes, ,recovering nothing, • 

• 20: •• -. pariiel Guy is the ChiefinvestmentOffice~·and-a-Director of Harrington Global· 

c:0:MPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF· -. - . . . 

5 
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• .. 1. Opportunities Fund,~ Bennuda~based hedgi fund; Unlike Cohodes, Guy f~iled tounderstand •• •­

.2 the flaws in the Concordia's business J;hodel. At the timeCohodes begai1building his short -_-

-• • 3 position in Concordia, Harrington Global owned approximately 2. 7 iniHion of the 51 million - --

_ 4 issued and outstanding common shares of the cornpari.y; prom its peak ill June 2016, Concordia -----

• - - _ 5 - lost $3.9 b,i_llion in rriarket:capitalization, _ and by 2017, I-Iarririgton Glob~~ Opp{)rtunity_Fµnd was _ 
- . . - . . . . ' . . . . . 

-6 • -forced to seil its shares.ofCoricordia for a loss of approximately $150 million. 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

7 . 21. _ Guy bl~ed_ short sellers for his bad investme~t. In an April 2018 e~ail to the • • 
.. ·' .·. . _... . .·" ' .. •.. - .•.. • - .• . . . .• • . • - .•.. . .• .• 

• . - . . • . . . - . . . • . . • . - - . . • . • . • . . 

--8 - Ontario Securities Connnissioil, Guy~ still:angered over his losses from the Concordia _ 

_ 9 investment ~ ·threatened "a fucking war" if short sellers bet against another one of his _-

10 -_ companies. 

- 11 - -B~ Daniel Guy Hires Derrick Snowdy To Spy On Marc Cohodes --
. . . . . . - . . . . . . . . . 

. . . . . - . . 

12 -22; -- -Derrick Snowdyis a Canadian private _investigator. DanieLGuy and Snowdy -

13 became acquainted when the ChiefFinancial Officer ofSalida Capital~ Guy's former fund-
- . . . . - . . 

• -• 14 . _asked Snbwdy to• perform due diligenc~ on a potential iii vestment _ • 
- • . . . . . . - . . . . . . . . . - . . - . . . - . . . . . - . . . . . . . 

_ 15 - 23. - _- Iri or around October 2015, Guyhired Snowdy to investigate whether a group of-
• •• 16 short sellers---: including Cohodes :_ was acting in concertto manipulate the share price "of • -

J 7 Concordia.Healthcare. (There w~s no tru,th to those suspicions.) Guy p~id Snowdy $25,000 per. --_ 

. • 18 • month, plus expenses~ -for his services. 
. - ' . . . . - . . . . . 

-19 - -24; --> I~ order to establish ~ reiationship ~ith Cohodes, Snowdy began hltrociuc~g 
. .. . . .. ' . 

-_ 20. himsdf to membe~s • of the short seller community in California. In 2015 and 2016, -Snowdy met • • 

- 21 - with short seller Carson Bl()ck in San Frarn::isco; • Later in 20 l6, Snowdy pitched ·a story on -• -
. . . . . . . . 

••. •• . ' . . .• . .• . •. ·. - ·. . ··. ·•. .. 

• _ 22 _ -Cat1adian National Railwayto Roddy Boyd, ajournalistfor-the Foundation for Financial 
. . . . . - . . . . - . 

- 23 - Journalism and an-acquaintance of Cohodes. • 

- 25. ----Boy~fagreed to take the Canadian N ationalRailway story, and, as "part of his • _ -

25 • iesear:ch, r~ached outto-Sriowdy. Jn20l6, Boyd travellecltq Toronto and met.with Snowdy. In -
. . . . . - . - . . . . • . • - ' . • ' . . . . . . . . • . - . • . . • . . ' . • . • . . • . 

- 26 - thi(course ofthat meeting, Snowdy asked Boyd for an introduction to Cohodes; and Boyd -

- -_ 27 - agreed to sendar{ email introducing the two., As part othfs effortsto win Cohode~ 's trust, 

2~ 

- COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF --
6 
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• • 1 Stiowdy:falsely claimed that he was considering an engagement adverse to Concordia's 

· 2 Thompson (whose defamation suit against Cohodes was still pending) anlshared Cohodes's 

3 determination to expose liars and cheats.· As Snowdy had intended, Boyd relied on those false · 

• .. 4 representations and repeated them to ·cohodes, who likewise relied on them· as establishing that . 

• 5 Snowdy was aligned with Cohodes with respect to Concordia. 
. • . . • . ' . . . 

. . . 

6 26; • •. So~etim:e in late 2016, after Snowdy had.been introduced to Cohodes, Snowdy..:.. 
: . . . . . • . . • . . • -. . 

. . . . 

7 still acting_ as Guy's agent- travelled to Sonoma, California, as part of the ongoing scheme to . 

8 surveil Cohodes .. To ingratiate himself with Cohodes, Snowdy visited Cohodes at his home and 

9 . sought to curry favor with Cohodes and Cohodes's family. Snowdy thus used his trip to 

1 Q California to solidify his relationship with Cohodes, surveil him, and open a line of 

11 • communication for later telephone calls. 
. . 

12 27: As Snowdy later told lawyers for Catalyst, he took on an "undercover" role and .. • 

- 13 "travelled to Los Angeles, San Francisco; Texas, New.York City, and Florida over a one--year 
. . . . 

14 period and infiltrated the short sellers group.".· • 

15 . 28 .. · On information and belief, Snowdy holds private investigator licenses froni 
. - . . 

: 16 . various Canadian provinces, but does not hold a·private investigator license from California or • 

17 ariy other U.S. state.> Snowdy nonetheless engaged in the business of a private investigator, • 

· 18 • within the meaning of California Business & Professions Code §7521, while in the State of 

• 19 California. Snowdy thus violated California Business & Professions Code §§ 7520 and 7523(a). 

20. • 29. • . Snowdy obtained access to Cohodes through fraud and deceit. In_ particular, 
. • . . . • 

21- • Snowdy falsely represented to Boyd and to Cohodesthat Snowdy was adverse to Concordia's 

. 22 Thompson and aligned w_ith Cohodes, when in fact Snowdy was being paid by Guy to try to 
. - . . . . . . . 
. .• . • . ' ' . . . . . 

23 prove.that Cohodes had manipulated the stock· of Concordia and other companies. •. At all times, 

24. Snowdy concealed froin Cohodeshis tnie employers and his true intentions in an effort to obtain · 

25 . access to Cohodes and information from Cohodes that Cohodes would not have provided had 

· 26 Snowdy told the truth. • 
. . . - . 

• 27 · 30. . In2016, 2017, and 2018, Cohodes had scores of communications with Snowdy 

28 
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. . ' . . . - . . . . . 

• • • • l using Cohodes' s cellular telephone, as well ·as communicati~ns by emall and in person. • 
- . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . 

. ' , . . . • . . . ' •. ' • . . ' . • - . . • . . . -

· 2 Cohodes would not have coi:mnunicated with Snowdy at.all had he been aware that Snowdy was • -

•• 3 working for Guy;:that Snowdy wa:s recording his phone calls, that Snowdy would disclose his - -
. . . . . . . . . ' . ' . - . . 

• . 4· emails; phone calls; arid p_rivate ccmversations to adverse_ third parties, or. that Snowdy was 

surveilling hini. 
. • ' . • . . . . . . • - . • • - • . • . ' - . • . . 

• C. Guy Falsely Accuses Cohodes. of Participatirig ill Illegal Market Manipulation. 
. . . . ' . . .. .. .. .. . . .. 

3J. - .On August_ 11,-2017, Guy sentNe\\11:on Glassman, the founder andm~aging 
. . . . - . . . . . . . 

- 8_ . partner of Canadian hedge fund Catalyst CapitalGtoup, an entail claim~g that G11y had -· • 

_ 9 information suggesting that Glassman had been targeted by a group of short sellers who sought-· 
. . . . . . . . . ' . . . . . . . - . . . . -· - . - - . 

. . - - . . . - . . . . . - . . 

1 o • t~ ''bring [him] d~~;" Guy did n~t send the email underhis own mµne, .but instead used the ·_.: -

11 - pseudonym Vincent Hanrta (the name of Al Pacirio's character irithe movie Heat), 

32;. _- Inhis August llemaii; Guyasseried that the "RC:MP [Royal CariaciianMounted: •. 
. . . . . . - . . . . , . . . . . . - . . - . . 

Police] and FBI [United StatesF~deral Bureau of Investigation] are aware ofthis 'cabal' :from a -. . . . - - . . . . . . . . . -

· 14 criininaL investigation but that doesn't help you iri the shprt terrri.'' Guy then listed the investors. • --

_ 15 _ -that he _claimed were involved, including Cohodes ''and his huge global network." In the emaiL • -

-.. l6 _ exchange; Guy asserted that-Cohodes, among others; was spreading false ruinors in ari effort to • 

• _ 17 manipulat~ the publicly trade·d se9urities • of Callidus ·Capital· ( a lending· company of which-· • • 
. . . . . . . ' . . . . . 

-_ .. 18 • Glassman was CEO) and had hireci private investigators.to follow Glassman around . 
. . . · . . . _- . ,· . . . . . • . . •. • . - .. 

. . . . . . . . - . . . 

33; . Guy's statements aboutCohodes wer~ false ancimisleading and were m:tend.ed (1) 19 
' ,; .: .. ,· . : .: : • .. .. .: . 

. ·. 20. - to portray Cohodes as a m~ketmartipulatorand"criminal'' and (2) pique Glassman's interest in -

-_ 21 - speal<lrtg toSnowdy>or Guy. -Cfoy had no factual basis to asseit that:Cohodes, awell.:known and • 

· _· _ 22 successful investor with a lengthy track r~cord of identifying over-valued companies and -· -
. - . • . . . . . - • . . • • . . . ' . • . . 

. . . - . . . - ' . -

_ -23 _ companies engaged infraud, was conspiring with other short sellers, was engaged in unlawful. • - • -

- 24 market manipulation; or was in ariy sense a."criniinaL" Moreover; Cohodes never took any_ - -

_ 25 _ short pos.ition in Calli~us CapitaL >Further;,Snowdy had actually asked Cohodes about Callidus ·•· -· -

. 26 and Cohodes had ihformed_Snowdy that h~ hacl no position in that stock 

: 27 34: • • • Over the course of the next few weeks in August; Guy and Glassman 

_ 28 . comimmicafod back and forth attempting to arrange ari in-person meeting: • Altl?,ough Guy was .. • 
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• < > 1 eager to1p.eet, Glassinan insisted that Guy p~oduce hard ~vidence or d~cumentation of the • 
- . . . . . . . . . . 

. . 2 • purported scheme.- • • 

• 3$; •.· On August 23, 2017, Guy~ still masquerading as "Vincent Hanna''~ participated • · 

• .. 4 in a conference·callwith Glassman arid a few of Catalyst's lawyers. In this call; Guy again· 

• 5 • falsely described Cohodes as a participant inthe purported unlawful scheme. Guy claimed that•. 
. . . - . . . . . - . - . 

6 the decline of Concordia Healthcare was a '~dry run" for.the short sellers, and their next-target • .••• 
- . . . . . . . . . . . 

1 was Valeant Pharmaceuticals,· a Canadian drug company. Guy asserted that the group of short ...• 

8. sellers ne~ded "big capital to take down Valeant" and suggested thatthey were working with the • • 
. . . . - . . . . 

. 9 . "R~ssian ~ob." When :questione~ about the alleged Russian connection, Guy achnitted that he • 
. . . . ' ' . . - . . . 

• 1 O • "had no hard evidence" but claimed that ''these. guys talk about •the big overse·as guys in Hong • . · • 
. . . . . . . . . 

• 11 • Kong' .as their money launderer," _and said that from this he condudedthat the c·onnection was • 
. . . . . . . - ' . . . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . ' . . . 

• • 12 • ''Russian or Cbinese.''. Guy admitted that.the source of this supposed.informatiohwas his "PP' : 

i~. (Snowdy, the private investigator): 
. - . . . - . ' . • ' . . . . . . ' . '. . . . . . . 

14 36: •· • Guy's assertions that Cohodes was involved in an uitlawful scheme to manipulate· 
. . . . . . . . . . - . -

15 . the shares of Valeant fu c·oordination with the Russian mob or other "moriey launderers" were .. • 

: ·• 16 . false·and misleading. Guy had rio basis in fact to make those assertions~: 

17 3 7. • •· At the time. Guy .made these false statements, he also knew that. Callidus was 
; 

• •: 18 planning to file a·ll:twsuitagain~tthe short sellers andothers that were supposedly manipulating•·· 
. - . . . . . - . ' • . ' . . . . 

• • 19 its :securities. As a result; Guy kn~w~ or had reason fo know; that the false :statements. that he had 
. . . . . . - . . . . . . . 

. . ' . . . . . . . . . 
. . ' . . - . ' . . . . -

20. 1I1ade to Catalyst and its lawyers would b~ repeated to a much larger audience of market 

21. participants, attorneys~ :investigators, and Canadian: law enforcement agencies. • • 

• •. 22. 38.. Following this call, Guy and Glassman began communicating through whatsApp, • 
. ' •. · . . . . ' .· • • . . : • . .. · • _. • .· - . 

• 23 an instant messaging service. At some poiriton or beforeAugust28,2017, Glassman became • 
' . . . . . . . . 

24. aware that."Vincentaanrta" was Daniel Guy, and began referring to hilh as Danny .. • • 

• 3 9, •. . In 1:iis ~~ssages with Glassman, Guy claimed that his investigation with Snowdy • • 

· 26 · was penetrating "the wolfpack" ...:: their name for Coho des and the group of short .sellers ~ and · • 

• • 27 thatSnowdywas op_ the ''inside.'' Guy repeatedlyclaimec;l that Snowdy :had num¢rm1s eiilails • •• 

. 28. 
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. . . . . . . . . . . 

l _ arid taped communications from his conversations with theshort sellers.-_ 

.2 .-_ D. Snowdy Boas(s That He Recorded Numerous Tel_ephone Conversations With Cohodes -

-_-: 3 •• 40. __ On i\ugust 2~, 2017; Guy messaged Glassman, '~I think you should meet 'Nith the•:·_ 
. . . . . . . . • . . • • • 

- 4 PI and hire him. He will-deliver tapes and emails etc." The ''PI" Guy wasreferrilig to was -

• < 5 Snowdy; -
. . . . . . . . . . . 

6 41; _ -_ Guy .arranged for Snowdy to meet with private investigators arid lawyers working._ 

7 for Catalyst ori or about August 26, 2017. In thatmeeting, Snowdy confit:'med that Guy was 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' . 

8. - payinghim $25,000.per immth plus expenses for his services~ Snowdy was also:asked whether -

-9 . h~ had- any recordings of his_ conversations with the short sellers he was surve111ing. Snowdy : __ -

10 - responded tliat he had "tons" -of reco~dings,: including tapes_ of conversations with Cohodes. 
. .: : . ,· .: ; ,. • 

- 11 -. -_ 42. -_ Following the meeting, Glassman received a debriefing from attendees suggesting • 
. . . . . . ' . . ' . . ' . . . . . . . . . ' . . 

12 that Snowdy had ho -riew or "actionable" information. (fu his commuhications with Guy, -
. . . ' 

1~ - Gfassman used the term "~ctionahle" to refer to information that was lawfully obtained;) -
' . . . ' ; • . • . • . . ' ' • ' • . • . . • . • • . 

• -• 14 • Glassman inenJicm.ed-that Snowdy had alluded to recordings of Cohodes, :but thatthey were not •: 

·15 played in the-meeting.• Glassman stated that unless_ Snowdy was able·to affirmatively prove that 

- • 16 - he liadinformation o(vafue, Catalyst and itsteani would have nothing to do with him. ·• · • -
. ' . . . . 

17 _ 43. - • Over the. ~ourse of the following weeks, Guy repeatedly assured Glassman that 

• • 18 • Snowdy had taped conversations with short ·sellers, including Cohodes. •: For example, .on August 
. . . . . . . . . ' . . . . . . . 

-19 • 28,20i 7, Guy wrote to Glassman, ''Yes he [Snowdy] has tapped.[sic]conversatioris andtons ~f 

.. 20 • emails." _ • 
. . ' ' ' . . . ' 

. ' . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

21 • 44. -.. On August 30~ 2017, Snowdy emailed Catalyst's outside attorney, John Killgman • 

- -22 PhiHips,using the game email' address lie had used to communicate with Cohodes, 
- . 

: 23 • j ds11-owdy@interfog,com. ln that email,· Snowdy falsely claimed that he: had ~ttended a meeting 

- 24 - with ''MC'' (o~ information and belief, he was referring to Cohodes) in California in February . --

-25 •. 2017 where he was asked·to ''initiate an mvestigationinto recruiting inside sources arid --- -
' . . . . . ' 

26 obtaining information/documents'' rel;ited to_Catalyst and. Callidus; Snowdy forwarded that 
• . • . . ' . . • ' . • . • . • . • . . . . • . . . . 

27 - emailto the emailaddress:danny@harringtonglob~lltd.~om (Guy;s professional emaffaddress): • 

28 
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- . - . . . . . . . . - . . . . - . . . . . 

: 1 and Guy then forwarded the emaii to Glassman. Glassman once again asked for:Snowdy's. 
. - . . . . . . . . 

2 recordhlg and wrote; "l sense your pi wants us to hire him and he. would go inside. Good idea 

·: 3 but we i not doing so woutproofofhis bona tides." 

• 4 45; • -By September; ·Guy had secured Snowdy a second me~ting'. On September 12, 

_ .. • 5 2017, Snowdy attendedanother meeting with lawyers for Catalyst, including Phillips. In this · · 
. - ' . . - . . - . . - . . . 

6 meeting,· Snowdy repeatedly bragged about recordings of conversations he had with various •. 

1 . i~dividuals,-and he ultimately played a recording of a September 6~2017 cellular telephone call: 

• 8 between Coho4es and Snowdy: Cohodes had not been aware that_ Snowdy was recording the 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . -

9 call, and he did hot consentto recording'. At_the time of that call, Cohodes·was in California.•· 

10 • • 46; .· • In fact, Snowdy has a practfoe ofr~cording phone calls withoutthe•conserit of the·• • 

11 other party. As· Snowdy later confessed to Boyd, one of Snowdy' s phones was programmed. · 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . . . . - . . - . 

12 • with software:to mitom~tically record calls and store theni onhis home computer, in violation ·of 

13 the Canadian Criminal Code Section 191(1). 

: 14 4 7; • • -Also in this: September meeting, _Snowdy made a number of fal~e statements. abolit . 

15 . Cohodes. 
. ' - . - . . . - . . 

a. : - • Sriowdy claimed that he had provided Cohodes with Concordia 
- • . . . . . . . • . . • . • . . . . . . . • . . . . • . . . . . . . . - . • . . . . . . 

J 7 Heaithc~e's 2016 Q4 numbers with slighta1terations, and that he had told Cohodes thathe • 

• -: : 18 • pulled the information "out of a dumpster." Snowdy then stated that, two. days before. : -• 
. . . . - . . . . . . 

- • '. . . • . .- .. - . • . ' . • . . .- _- . . • _. - - . . - . . . ' • . . . - • . .• . . . . • - - . . .• 

• 19 Concordia's Q4 numbers were ni~de public, Cohodes shorted Concordia's stock.based on the 

20. · infmmationSnmvdy fed him;· Snowdyalso.claimed that Cohodes ·was r~ceiving:information ••. _ .• 
. . . . . . . • . - • • . • . . ' • • . . • . . • 

•. 21 • _aboµt Catalyst''from the inside." Snowdy's statements that Cohodes traded on information that.·_ 
. . . . . . . . . . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - . 

• • . 22 . Cohodes believed to be· inside Concordia information were false and misleading and were ·made .• 
. - ' . . - . - ' . . - . . . - . . . - - . . . . . . - . - . . - . 

. 23 to paint Cohodes as a marke{nianipulator; Snowdy had nobasis for these allegations and knew.- -• -
. . . -

24 • his statements were false at the time he made them. 
. . . . . - . - . . . . . . . . - . . . . .. 

. . . . . . - . . ' . . . - . -. . , . . . . . . . . - . . . 

• _ 25 . h •• : Snmvdy falsely clahned thatAdam Spears ~d Sunny Puri of Anson Group • 

• 26 Canada, an investment firm, regarded Cohodes as ''their boss" arid allegedthat ~'the Anson 

• · 27 guys" bad en~age~ in matket manipulation or oth.~r unlawful_ schemes such as soliciting fosider : 

28 
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• : 1 . information; planning t~ "infiltrate Callidus / Catalyst';·to "get dirt or developsources;'; and .• •• 
. . . . . . . . . . . 

2 coordinating a "short attack" on a public C~~dian company called.Badget D_aylighting., • -

•: • J Snowdy also claiined that Arison managed some ofCohodes's money. At the same time, 
. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• . 4 • Sn~wdy also linked Anson to allegations thaf thefiim had inanip~lated the secUI"ities of 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

: 5 • Callidus:·.Tous, Snowdy's statements.falsely portrayed: Cob.odes as involved in~nunla:wful • 
. '. . · .. - - ' . . . - . . • . - • - . - - • . . - - . ' • . • . - . ' . . . • ... - • 

• 6 • conspiracy to manipulate·s·ecurit1es· .. In fact, Anson did notrrianage any of:Cohodes's money; •• 

- . _ : 1 Cohbdes was riotthe "boss''. of Sp_ears, Puri,or anyone' else at Anson and gave no one atAnson . -
- . . . , - . . . . . . .. 

• 8 any reaso~to thinkofhim'that way; he didnot direct or ccmtrol the activiti~s ofanycme at·· 
-- . .. ' . .. . .. . . . .. . . 

. 9 Anson; he did n:ot coordinate a so"'."called ':short attack;' on Badger Daylighting; he did not 
. . . - . > : ' . . - . . . . -,- • . . . :- : . . - . • : . > . . :- : - . . . . . . > . : : . 

-1 o : manipulate th~- shares _of Callidus; · and he did not even have a short position in Callidus and had : --• 

11 told· Snowdy as much. • Sriowdy had no-ha.sis for these allegations and knew his statements were_· 

• 12 _ false at thi time he made them. 

. 13 . c. . • • . During the August 26, 20 IT meeting, Snowdy claµned that the cabal of 

• -: 14 _short sellers had set up 65 separate Twitter account~ that they would use to coordinate messages 
. . . - . . - . . . . . . . . . - . 

15 at the s~etime without being conneded to_ one another, During the September 2017 meeting, -

- •• .16 . Snowdy .elaborated that· he -had ·analyzed data. that Guy had purchased ffom Twitter in order to •: •. · • -

• 17 investigate_th~.alleged_manipulation ~f Concordia stock,,and had discovered that_''[ o]ne night,. 

• ..• 18 • Cohodes/ the cabalscrewed up and all the acccmntstweeted the same thing at the same time 
. . . . . . . . . . - . . • . ' . . . . . 

• 19 • aboutatelecom company in Swed~n:'' These statements, alleging that Cohode~ \Vas irivolved 
- . . - . . . - . . . . . . 

- . 20 • "dth a group ofshort sellerswho were conspiring to send out negative infopnation to _ > • 
- •. • - - .•. - . . . .. • . .· . . - •• 

. - . . . . . 

2l- • manipulate j:,ulJHc tracled ·securities,_ were false and once again falsely ·portrayed Cohqdes as · 
. . . . . . . - . - - . 

22. engaged in unlawful market manipulation. -Snowdy.had no basis to.make these statements with_ -
.• • .· . . . . • . . . . .•.. • . . '. . .. · . . . . . - . . . • . •. . . - -. . . . . - - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• 23 . respect to Cohodes, .and knew he had no basis for those.statements when he niade thein; 
. . . . . . 

24 • d. • •• Snowdy. falsely asserted that Cohodes was a "puppet master" of the cabal 

- _ • 25 : and falsely suggested thatCohodes hadrelatforishlps with unnamed persons in "Hong Kong, · 
. . . . 

· 26 - Europe,. [ and] the Carib bean'' that were used for ''money· laundering and/or the facilitation of .. · -• 
. . . - . . . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . 

: 27 - exit cash from Asia," -These statements falsely accused Cohodes: of being engaged in criines, • 

28 
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. . . . ' . . . . . . . . . ' . . . • . ' . -

• > l . specificaily conspiracy to manipulate securities markets and money laundering:: Snowdy·had_ rio • 
. . . . . . . . . . - . . . . . . . 

. · 2 basis- to make thes~ st~tements·about Cohodes, and kllew he had Iio b1:1sis_forthose statements __ . 

- < 3 when he niade them . 
. -- . .-- : .• ' •. .· . • • ....• _.· . . . • : .- ••. -· . _- .• •. • •. · .· •. -· : _. .·• 

4 - e. -• Snowdy -falsely claimed that he had an -"ongoing relationship" with .the -

• 5 - United Stat~s Departmentof Justice and falsely claimec:l that "they are running a large tax 

6 evasion investigation" irt -which "Cohodes' s nal11e is 2nd Oil [the] list.,;. To -this day; Cohodes: is -
. - . - . . . 

-7 - unaware of any :"tax evasion" irivestigation -of him: -As a prominent cdtic of companies engaged -

--8 - .in a,()couritirig fraud -and securities· law -violations, Cohodes has frequently _been-in co11tact with --
.: .: .. • .. : ·- . .: .: ., .. 

9 . U.S: enforcement_ autho_rities to_repoitboth suspected criminal behavior and violations of civil 

• 10 _ laws. :Atriotime has any enforcement authority ever suggested to him tliat he was the subject of-: 
. . . . . . . . . . . 

. . . . ' . - . 

• 11 • a ''tax evasion _investigation." Snowdy-ha.d no basis to make these statements about Cohodes, • --

• _ 12 andknewJ,1e had rio basis for those statenients when he made them. 

13 - 48. •- All of these statements about Cohodes were false when made. Snowdy had no _ --• 

---14 - reasonable basis it1 fact to make those statements. To the :contrary~ they w.ere fabrications by --
. • • . - . • . .··: • . . . : • ' - : . . •.. : •.. - . • . • • . ': •. : . 

_ 15 _ Snowdy for the _purpose of continuing .his• lucrative relationship with Guy~_ insinuating himself 
. . . . . . . . . . 

---16 with Glassinan's advisors, and attempting-to establish his own credibiiity as an effective 
- -

·.17 investigator. 

• • l 8· -49; . _ At the tirrie that Snowdy made these _false statements,_ he and Guy also knew that. : 

--19 • Callidus. was planning to file a lawsuit against the short sellers and -others that were supposedly -
. . . . . ' . . . . . - . . • . - . - . ' . . . . . . . - . - . . - . . . - . . -

._ 20 - n1anipulating its se~urities .. -As a. result,_ Guy and Snowdy knew, or had reason-tp know, ~at the 

- 21 falses~aternents that Snowdy 111ade to Cataiyst and its lawyers woµld .be repeated to a much • 
··. ··. . .. _ ·_ • . . - - >_ ' .: ,:_ . .: . : 

: . 22 larger audience of market participants, attorneys, investigators, and Canadian law enforcement 
- -.. 

--23 - agencies. • -

50. - 'After the meeting,· Glassman messaged Guy that Snowdy needed to substantiate. --• 

-25 : every :all~g~tion he -had 111~de._ In ~~sponse, Guy claimed that Snowdy h.~d "two years of stuff.' • : -

-26 - Tapes emails etc." Guy aiso insisted that Snowdy had a valuable email between Cohodes and · •• 

- • 27 Can.1:1dian•aitomeyl)arryl Levitt discussing.Catalyst and:callidus, but Glassman indicat~d that-. -

28 
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1 he already had that ·document. 

_ 2 51. . In fact, Snowdy did disclose that einail to CaUidus. ·rn the sub~equent Canadian _ • . • • • 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

: -3 litigatioi}.-betweenCataiyst and short'sellers it sµed, the short sellers alleged:that the Catalyst 

, 4 pat1:ies ha(i obtain.e_d this ~mail through illega1 hacking. T,he Catalyst parties responded by -

• • -. : 5 • asserting in a court filing in May: 2021 that, iri fact, "a copy. of the email was· obtained from· 

6 Derrick Sn~wdy "7ho obtained it from Cohodes/' •• Thus it is confirmed that Snowdy did obtain • 
. . . . . . . . • . . . '. . ' • . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . • . . '. . 

-7 Cohodes '.s emails and disclosed them to Catalyst. Further,· although Glassman told Guy he had • _ • 
... · . . . . . ' .. · . . .' ... · . . .· . . . . •. • . 

• • 8 ·dorilJts about the credibility and quality cif Sno\\7dy' s infonnation, h~ later admitted at a. • _- • 
. : : .• .• .· ,; .: .: .: .. : .. 

9 . deposition in May 2021 that he mad~ those statements to ''put pressure" on ·Guy in the hop~s of _ • 

• 10 getting-the tapes that Snowdy promised.· 

11 • 52. • . • Likewise, internal communicatkms that were urise~led in Canadian. litigat10n iri • .-
' . . . . . . . . . . . . 

: 12 M~y 2021 •revealedthat Glassman and his lawyers did credit the false and defam~tory • 

. 13 - information that Guy and Snowdy fed thein. For example, a September 13, 2017 chat message 

- . 14 . sent by a tnember ~f Catalyst's investigaticm. firm, Black Cube; •contained the following 

_ 15 . statement ( typos ~d mis.spellings in original):' 

-: 16 

17 

-: 18 • 

19 

20. 

• 21 

_ 22 -

_23. -

--: --__ Jim and Naomi (Brian's jr lawyer) just finished a mtng_ w. a 'source,:_ Vincent _ - --
-Hamia's pi. !have asked that Naomi's hand written notes be fwdedto:h asap and • 

- followed up when typed up: 2 of the inijmrtant 'facts' thatneed t_obe chased ·_ . -• _ -• 
_ dowrt: 1.: 'Levitt\ one of the fortress principals and a former nortori rose lawyer, _ • 
allegedly wrote ari eniail·to.cohodes asking-for direction etc on how-to manipulate/ 

• : use the whistleblower pgm and other 'advice'. Jim literally saw the emails on _ • -· -· 
snowdy's computer: This is unequivocal proof of lJoth conspiracy AND illtentto 
in~_pulate B9'fH the~ ( cr~mal} and abuse he whistleblowersystem ( quasi;. _ 

--_. cr1mmal). This 1s_ very serious and very valuable to us. 2. Snowdy alleges he has :_ 
· -proof cohedes has chinese. backing/$. Ifwe fmd out who it is and sick.the chil).ese 
· • backers on cohedes, that could be a good fact for us. Snowdy also alleges anson: . 

' .-_ partners Canada are the most dirty of the W olfpack. If prove that and connection 
to .west face, very helpful'. __ . - • -• -_ _ . -- • _ • _ : _ -_ : : . - .. :· - _ : 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

-53; -· ·• While:c()hodes did infact email with Levitt, th~y did not in any wa)' disc~ss • 
. . . . . . . 

24 - manipulating the ~arket or the whistle blower system, and Snowcly' s characterization of the 
. . . . . . . ' . . - . . . . . . . . . . . 

• 25 . email heirilproperly gisclosedw~s falsea11d misleading.: Like~ise, Sno\Vdy's claim that • 

26 - Cohodes had-''chiri:esebacking/$"was false. But-Catalyst andits·attomeys and investigators -
. . 

. . . . ' . . . . . . . . . 

• 27 - credited Snowdy's smears of Cohodes andacted. on thern. _ -

28 

. COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE REI,IEF _ • 
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•. 54:: • .Guy cont~riued to.press Glassman that Snowdy was stiHworking for Guy and 
. . . . . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 could be usefuL For example, on November 9, 2017, Guy messaged Glassman that "Anson --

•• 3 reached out to my :guy to meet when Suni [ sfo] Puri is back in a:week I think he may be 
' . _· . . . ' . .. ,· _· ' ' .• .• . . . _· .• . . ,· .· .. • .• .. 

• 4 • - overseas with Cohodes; Now] would pay my guy to tape alHhese ·conversations." Glassman • 

: 5 • declined. --: 

6 

• . 1 

8 

9 

10 

11 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 5; :- Although Snowdy and Guy had evecy- incentive to prove their claims about -. ----

Cohodes, they never did so . 
' . . . . . . . 

. . . . . . . . . ' . . . . . . . 

• • E. Doc~meritsRevealing S~o~dy and Guy's Surveillance ~f CohodesAreUnsealed iri --_··-. • • 
- Canada • • • • • 

. . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 

· 5 6: - Whil.e Guiwas att¥mpting fo pitch Snowdy and the short-seller investigation to • • 

Newton Glassman~ Glassman and Catalyst Capital were involved in aserfos of contentious 

. : 
12 

lawsuits fo: Canada. In 2017, Catalyst sued a number of hedge fund managers and journalistsf or _ 

defamation. >At ~e center ofthe_litigatiori was an.article publishelinthe Wall Street Journal 

14 
_ alleging that Catalyst Capital was engaged iri criminal or fraudulent activities and was: under 

." .• . _ ... · . . . . . .• .· . .- . • .... · .. • .• • 

investigation for those activit_ ies: _Catalyst's lawsuit alleged that a group of short. sellers __ 
_ 15 

.. 
16 

requesteilpubHcation of the arti~le to attack Catalyst. Ca,talysfs lawsuitresulted in a series of,_: 

other Canadian. lawsuits. --
.11· '· •. . . . .. -- - :_ . .._ . :_ . ·. 

- -57. • _ During these iawsuits, discovery uncovered a ~ass of documents related to • -

_ 
19 

Cohodes; Guy;artd Snowdy. Amorig these were the WhatsApp messages betwee~ Glassman 

20 

21 

·:. 22 

• - 23 

24 

and Guy discussing Snowdy's investigation into Cohodes; lawyer's notes summarizing the 
. . . ' • • . . . . . . . • . ' • . • . • . . . • . . . • . • . • • . . 

· .. - • •.• . ·.· . ·.· .. ·. . •. · • •. •. ' • •. . •. •. •.• •. . • ... 

August 26, · 2017 ineeting between Sriowdy and Catalyst; and lawyer's notes summarizfug the -. -

September 12, 2017 meeting between Snowdy and Catalyst; in which Snowdy played the . -

recording-bf one of his -calls with Cohodes, all as described above.. -

. 58. ·•, .. These records_were unavailable to Cohodes or the public until May 2021, when . ' 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

_: 25 : the.Ontario:Supedor Colirt of Justice wisealed the documents. 

26 
59.: _ -. Once the docurrients were unsealed~ Cohodes discovered that_Guy had hired_ • 

Silowcly as.his agentt~ si.rrveil and investigate Cohodes ~d other short s~llers; Cohode~ - • • 27 
. . • . .• .... • .. • • .· ~ .· • . .• • .. · ... • ... · .• ... • . . .. • .. · .• .· . .• • . • . . • 

likewise discovered that Snowdy, acting as Ouy's agent, had recorded their cellular or cordless_ . 28. 
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• •: 1. telephone;_cq~munications in both2016 and 2oi7without his ~onsent: 13~fore that time, there : _· 

2 was nothing Ccihodes could have· reasonably doneto discover that Guy _had hired Snowdy as his. 

- > 3 investigatcir or that hfa calls with Snowdy were being recorded, •: : 

F. MiMedx Also Uses-Sriowclyto Spy oil C_ohodes_. · •• 
- . - . . 

• 60.: . Around September-2017, Cohodes began tofollow:allegations aboutimproprieties . 
. . . .• . • .• .. ' • . • .· .. · . . • _. . . . • .. · 

6 • at MiMedx Group, Inc., a publicly traded company that processes, markets; ·and distributes 

• - .. 7 medical products. Cohodes becatlle a vocal critic ofMiMedx based on his.assessment of the·. 
. . . . . . . - . . . . 

• • 8. ·corilpany'.s pubHcly reported :financial results and Iris: doubts about the effectivenes~ of the : 
. - . " . . . . . . . . . ' . 

9 . company's products; among other concerns. He ultimately concluded that MiMedx had (a) paid 
. - . . 

• 1 o doctors to:· tout MiMedx' s products withoutdiscfosing the payments; (b) shipped products to • 
. . . . . . . . 

11 • entities that did not pay for the product but instead relied on Mi.Medx to sell that product ( also 
- . .. . . . . . . . . . . -

• : 12 •. called "~hannel stuffi~g''); ~d (~)directed and encour~ged customers ofMiMedx products to:· • 
. . 

13 . use incorrect billing codes when billing government entities to increase government • 
- • . • ? • . • • . • • • • - • - . - . - . . . . . . . . . . 

· • • 14 . reimbursem_ents; arid. then shared the :proceeds witll ·the entities 6r individuals who miscoded the .• 
. . 

. . . . . . 

_ -15 _ reimbursement forms .•. -

. : 16. 6 L : _ Coho des published his critkisms of MiMedx using a Twitter account that : 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' . . 

17 identifies him bynanw and a website he had -s~t up to documentquestionable acccmntirig and 

_ 18 sales practices atMiMedx. 

19 • 62; .• .Around this_.same til:ne, the summer or falh>f 2017, an anonymmisblogger 

. 20 • operating under th~ pseudonym ''J\urelius Value" posted :an articleaboutMiMedx describing _ • . . _ 
•... • .· .. · . . .· . . . . .. ,· . • ... • .· . . . .• ) . ,' .· .. • . . . . ... ' .· ... 

•. 21- ongoing fraud at th~ ccimpat,1.y; Shortly after Aurelius published the articl~, MiMedx published a -
. 22 . press release claitning tha~ Aurelius Value's claims were.false. In that atiicle, J\1iMedx •••• 

•. . :. . - : . - _- ·, - .. '. . ·. · .. _. ·... . ·. ._. . ·_. - .. 

• . • 23 . conc·eded that it did not know the identity ofAur~lius Value, but it promised to holcl the blogger • • • 
. . - . . . . . . . 

• 24 • "a~countable._" {Cohodes is not Aurelius Vahie ~d had nothing to 40 with.the article'.) ·:· • • 
• . . . . . . . • ·.. . - ' •.. ·, ·.• . · ... 

25. • : .63; : • ·_: On C>ctobe~ 4, 20 i 7,: MiMedx filed a law~uit against Sparrow Fund Manag~ment: : - : 
. . . . . . . . . . . - . . . - . . . . . . . . - . . . . . . - ' . . -

26 · Li; a-New York hedge fund manager and investment advisory firm; MiMedx alieged, among · • 
• . ' . • - . . . - • '. . . . - . . . . . . . 

• : 27 6the_r things, that partners at Spm-ow were blqgging under the najne Auteliu~ v:alue anchyere • • • 

. 28. 

• ••. COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE. REI.JEF 
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: 1. trying to manipulate ~e price of1\1iMedxshares; •Uitimately, MiMedx conceded thatrieither •: • 
. - - . - ' - . . . ' . - ' . . 

.. 2 Sparrow nor its principals wete Aurelius Value, and MiMedx dism:issed its lawsuit. Sparrow 

. . 3 responded by suing MiMedx for malicious prosecution irt federal court in New York and sued : • 
- . . . . . . 

.. 4 • • MiMedx' s outside counsel in Los Arigeies Superior Colll1:. 

• 64.: . On:()ctober 24, 2017, shortly after MiMedx filed its lawsuit against Sparrow and 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . 

6 • at.the verysame time that Guy. and ·snowdy were falsely accusing Cohodes of trying to. 

• ... 7 . manipulate the shares of Canadian companies, a person using an ationymized email and caHing . 
- . . - . - . . - . . . . . . . . . - . . . . . . . . - . - . 

' - . ' . . . . ' . . . 

• •• 8. · themselves ''ari MDXG friend'; wrote to MiMedx executives. The email stated that MiMedx 

. 9 . was "on the right track" in its lawsuit and purported to identify "criminal short sellers" who.·· 

• 10 : were part of the "MDXGcabal" and who "worked closely with Marc·Cohodes." ·(MDXGis the 
. . . . . . . . . . 

11 • stockticker symbol for MiMedx.}: MiMedx then provided this anonymous smear to the United •• · 

• : 12 • States Department of Justice in~ effort to sh.ift attention away from its own miscondlict and • 

. • 13 . onto Cohodes. • Cohodes obtained ·a heavily redacted copy of this· email in response to a Freedom .. 
- - - . . . . . ' . - . . . . 

• • 14 of Infomiation Actrequest. The Copy that was produced to him :redacts the email _address of the 
. . . . . . . 

. • - • . - . • . . • . . . . . • . . . . . . 

. 15 sender and recipients, and all names other than his own. Ori information' and belief, the ••• 

•: 16 . anonymous email to MiMedx was sent by Snowdy. 
_- _- .• .· .· . - - .· . . .· - .·. .· - . . - _·. 

J7 65:. • • Th~ anonymous e~ail'fourid a.receptive audience at MiMedx. MiMedx escalated • 

• •. ·: 18 • • with personal attacks on Cohodes _in an .effort to discredit him and distract the market and · 

• • 19 regulators from MiMedx's criminal conduct. On the main page 9fits coryorate :website, . • • 

·. 20. • www.mim~dx:com; the company included a link to "Short Selling Commentary" that Posted 
. . . . . . . . . . . 

' ' . . . . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• . 21 numerous articles dir~¢tly attacking Cohodes, inchidiilg p9stsby MiMedx. and Petit 6n October • •• 

. . 22 . 24; October 27, October 30, November 2, December 14, and December 28, 2017. • •• 
. . . . . ' - . . . . . . . . . 

·_ • . - ' . . • '.• •.. ' . ·, ·.· •. •.• - ·.. . ·.· •• _- · .• 

23 • 66; ·• • .. Documents from the Sparrow-MiMedx litigation, first re~ealed to Cohodes when 
. . . . . . - . . . 

24. they were madep11blic in August 2021; confirm that MiMedx either approached, or was 

• • 25 • approached by; Snowdy to tryto ·demonstrate a connection between• Sparrow; Cohodes,: and .. 

· 26 • Aurelius Value,.aridthat Guy toutedthe illegalwork Snowdy had done for Guy to convince· 

• :27 MiMedx to hir~·snowdy: For example, aFebruary2018 fovoicefroin the.investigation firm .. 

. 28, 

•• COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. 
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- : : 1 _ Mintz Group, detailing work that 1\1:intz performedon behalf of MiMedx :in mid.;December 

- 2 2017, report~ that th~ firm at that_timci "[c]oliductedonline~ press._and soci~l media searches for - -

•: 3" nanny Guy to determine his background~ searched for Guy's involvement witl;iConcordia;. 

-_. 4 reviewed C;ohodes'stweets targeting Concordia; .... searched forsocialinedia accounts -

• _-: 5 • belonging to Snowdy; reviewed Snowdy's Twitter profile and interactions with Cohodes; . ; . • 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 • [c]onductedpress·re.search onDerrick Snowdy and wrote update cm•him." Mintz investigators: - -
- . . . . . . . - . - . . 

: 7_ also billed for time spent on "se:veral conferences with inyestigators on Anson, Guy- and Snowdy --

• • • 8 findings." • ()n inforination _ and b~Hef, Sriowdy took advimtage of lµs • illicitly obtain~d 

-9 . recordings -and shopped the information around to potential customers - companies like 
. - - ·- .. 

• 1 Q : MiMedx that wished to surveil Cohodes. -
. . . - . . 

67. ·- . In addition, Snowdy later sfatedthat around this time,heattended ameetirig_that 

• -12 in.cl~ded represent;itive~ of both MiMedx and Guy, specifically: -_ 

a. • ._ MiMedx CEO Petit,· --

: : 14 -_- b. • -: : : _ David M. Perruni { ari attorriey _at Wai-go French, a faw firrn that was then • -
. . . - . • . . • . . . • . • - • . . . . - . . ' . - - . . • . . . . 

_ -15 outside courisel to MJMedx_ in it~ litigation against short seUers and employee whistleblowers), --• -

-• • 16 _ • c. • • • Ed Borkowski, formerly the CFO of Concordia, who became executive vice 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . •• .- . . .· • _,. . . . . .· - .- - . . .· - - _- .. · - _· - -

-17 presidep.t and interim finance chief of MiMedx in spring 2018~ and --

- d. - an unidentified lawyer for one of Gµy'S companies .•. 18 

19 -68; - Snowdy was successful in pitching his services•to 1v1iMedx. On JanuarylS,2018, 

• - -_ 20. - emailed Snowdy a11d copied Le}{i Hade11, then general counsel of MiMedx. -Pemi~i confirmed:_ : 

• -21 - _that ''[ w Je r~ceived your signecl copy ofthe erigagementagreement" &nd set forth in detail '~the: • -
.; .: .: .: • .: .: .: .: .: .. .: 

22 _ general obj ecti~es of MiMedx for the engagement." -_ Pernini' s list of obj ectlves made clear that 
.. '. 

23 - he ancl MiMedx expected that Snowdy had~ or: could obtairi, access to Coho des' s emails, phone 
- . . 

- 24 calls; tweets; and other confidential information: For example; Pernini'sHst ofMiMedx 
- . . . 

25 _ objectives included ·-

• 26· 

27 

28 

a. --• •- obtaining "advanced '.notice of any upcoming attacks or damaging articles --• 
- . . . . . , . 

' . . . 

or tweets on MiMedx"· • -. . . . _- . . _, 

• -_ COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF -
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. • . . . - . . . - . . . ',. . . . -

• : b. • • getting "drafts of artfoles ( ot tweetsY' in advance;: : • .. 
. . . • . . - ' - . ' . • . . . - . • . . • • 

' . . . . . - . 

c: •.• lelirning who."participated ori any calls, emails, or grouprriessages,,_with 
• • • • o • • • • • • • • • • • • • • L ' • • • • • • • • 

· : : .. 3 • Coho des that ccincenied MiMedx: .. • - . _ . 
. . . . . 

'_. . .• . . . . ' . . . - .· ... _. . . . . . . . 

d. -•foaming ''who is the moriey lJehfuq Cob.odes"; 

·e. learning whether "Cohodesis being paid forhis actions";. ·. · 
. • . . . . - : . • . • - . . . . . . - . . . . 

-f. • learning whether current or former employees_ ofMiMedx had been in •. 
• : -- . : : • ,: .: _- : : 
. . . . . . . . - - - . ' . . - ' . . . 

• _ : 7 • contact with Cohodes, arid obtaining "a list of employees that Cohodes and others are targeting : • 

• 8 :for information'';: 

9 - g.:: . • investigatip.g ''any other evidence of illegal activity by Cohodes, such as·. -

1 o • front runriirig; naked ·shortmg, money faundering~. etc._" -

11 • 69: '· . A copy of Pernini.'s January 15,2018, email to Snowdy is attached hereto as 

. l2 • Exhibit A. This document was retrieved from a publiciy available. court filing. • 

. 13 . . 70.· . A~ the_ time that Pemini engaged Snowdy on behalf of MiMedx, Sriowdy was not ' 
. • • . . . . - ·. . . ' . . 

• . 14 lic~hsecl-as a, private investigatothi any U.S. state. 
- - - . . . ' . ' . 

. 15. . 7L •. : . On Januaryl9, 2018, Perninifollowed up with:another email to Snowdy,statin.g •.· 

. : 16 that he had received a voicemail from Snowdy and adding an additional "objective" to · ·: 
. . . 

17 Snowdy's engagement •• 

.. 18. • 72. : ... OnJanuary 26, 201_8, not long aJter MiMedx had retained Snowdy to spy on 
. . - . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . 

• 19 • Cohodes, M:iMedx C:E()Petit pubHshedapost titi~d ''Cohodes' Illegal Selling Operations:" The 
. ·- - -- .. - •• .. - . ••. .· ", . •• . . . . . . ._ '··. . . -_ ••. ••. . •• 

• • ·. 20. • article mimicked soine of the false and defamatory allegationsthatSnmvdy and. Guy had made • • 
. . • . . ' . - . . . . • . • . , . - . . - . . . 

21 • againsfCohodes in Canada just weeksbefore; For example, MiMedx's post:stated: : 
,. -· .. . . . .. ·- .. 

: . 22 _ a.. • •• ''We beli~ve Marc. Cohodes and his cabal ·or~hestrat~ and participate in 
. - . . - - . -

23 . iU~gal short selling attacks; .. ;.'' : •• • 
. . 

24 • •. b. "In MiMidx's case, we believe Cohodes is probably' being paid by certain •• 

. : 25 • hedge funds that have developed substantial losses over the years by short selling the· 

•. · 26 Company."·. 

•• 27 . C .• •• Cohodes had m1e,ofhis "publicatior).:shills'' write a "fraudulent memo" .· .• 

28 

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES'.AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF •• 
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. .• . . . . . . . ' . . . . . 

• 1 purportedly by a former MiMedx employee and then circulate_d it to major me.dia sources and . : 

. 2 regulators. • • 

> . 3 • 73. •· · • E~ch of the statements recounted :above about Coho des was faJse and defamatory 

·_. 4 an~iinten.dedto both harm Cohod~s's reputation and conceai MHvleclx's~Petit's~ :and•Ta:ylor's • 

:- • 5 iUegal conduct.· · 

6 74 .••. · In J8:11uary 20.18; Cohodes wrote tb MiMedx's independeht auditors, Ernst & 

. 7 -• Y:oung, alerting them to the acc()untingissries that he had identifiedthrough his investigations_. 
. . . ·.. . . . . . - . . '. . . . . . . . . ' . . . . . . . 

• 8 Upon revie'\V ()f that: letter,· Errist & Y ciung notified MiMedx that it. would need to investigate: 

9 those fasues·and could not certify MiMedx's 2017 finapcia1 statements._ . • 
. . . 

10 • : 75: :. ·_Then, ()n February 26, 2018, Bloomberg published an article reporting thatthe • 

11 United States Department of Justice was investigating whether MiMedx was overcharging the 

• • 12 federal .government, and whether it was eilgaged: in a fraudulent sales. ~d. accounting practice._·• 

- B called "channel stuffing." • 
'. . - . . . - • . • - . . . . . •. - • . . • . : • . . . • . 

: • : 14 76; • • The next .day, .MiMedx responded by claiming it was. unaware of any such•_ .•. 
. . . . • . • . - • . . . . • . . • - -

. 15 inve~tig;ation aridby trying to .deflect the bad news by ·attacking Cohodes. In a press release •• 

• • 16 . published on the MiMedx:website; the company stated: • 

17 

•. : 18 

19 

. 20 

21 

••. 22. 

:23 -

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• .·_ TheJJ~bli6 should be well aware that the Coinpanyhas·been under a concerted, 

• illegal short selling _attack since September. This group of illegal short sellers, 
. . . . . . . . . . . . 

• whi:ch the Gompany believes includes MarcCohodes, Aurelius V ~lue~ Viceroy • 
. . . . . . . . . -

Research; and other numerous hedge .funds and fadividuals, has publicized a • 
. . • . .. • . . : . • . . . . . ' . • . . . . . . . . 

continuous stream of niisinfonhation arid lfos·abolitnumerous aspects of the·•. 

Company's business .. -

: 77. • • •• Once again, these statements about Cohodes were false and defamatory and> 
' . . . . . - . . . . 

• 24' intended to both htum Cohodes's reputation'and conceal MiMedx's, Petifs, and Tayior's illegal • 

• . 25 . conduct • • 

26 • 78. Snowdy obtained rrioney or other.items of value from Mi.Medx·or its agents on the . 
. • - . = • . • • . - . • . • . • . • . . . • . • . • . • • 

27 • basis of iris claim~ thathe had, or could obtain, recordings of Cohodes, em~ils to or from 

. 28. 
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. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . ' . . • . • . . • . 

: 1 Cohodes, and informatioilthat wpuld show Cohodes unlawfuHy manipulating MiMedx -

, 2 se"curities. _ -

• -_ .3 • 79;:. -The ''objectives" that MiMedx and Pernfui provided to Snowdy pursuaritto 
. . . . . . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

_ 4· MiMedx' s engagement ofhim crn;lld not ·be achieved, as a practic;al matter~ withoutSnowdy - -
' . ' . . . . . . . 

• -. _ 5 eng;;:igihg ii1fraud, deceit, ~d U11la~l recording of telephone calls or other wire • 
. . - . . . . . . . . . 

-6 • COtmnllllic~tioiis.: Moreover, MiMedx itself had a pervasive p~actice of impropetly r~cording its:·.·· -
. . . . . . . - ' . . . . . . . . 

-_ : 7 - own employ~es in an effort to retaliate against and discredit whistleblo~ererriployees. -An 

--8, Internal investigafam conducted by MiMedx' s outside counsel fmmd that Petit oversaw an -
• _ 9 . iriterriai spying' program called "Project Snow White''that generated at least 2,750 hour~ of .• • • -

: 1 o • ·secret surveillanc~ video of its o:wnemployees, plus secret recording oftelepho:rie conversations, -
. . . . . . - . 

11 all obtained without the consent of all the participants'.-_ On information and belief, Cohodes 

- : 12 - alleges thatMiMedx, through its:employee or agent Snowdy, alsorecorded Cohodes~s teiephone .· 
. . . - . . . . 

- 13. conve~satibns without his knowledge or consent and subje~ted hiin to video surveiHance~ 
. . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' ' . 

- . 14 80i • _ - In the end; Coho des was vindicated. MiMecix ulthnately withdrew its annual 

_ -15 financial statements -for the years 2012 through 2016, plus the. quarterly financial statements for , _ -
. . . . . . . . . 

> 16 th_e .fir~( second; and third quarters of 2017. MiMedx' s<stock was delisted, both Petitand 

• 17 MiMedx's,COO William Taylor were ultimately convict~d ofsectiritiesfraud at1&senter1ced to 

: : 18 - prison; and on April 6, 2020, the company announced that it had agreed to pay $6.5 million to : --
. . . ' . . . . . . . . 

19 -• re~olve F~lse Claims Actallegatio0:s that it knowi0:gly s{ibmitted f~se information to the. --.-
. . . . . . . - . . 

_ 20 - Department of V ~terans Affairs .. _ . 
. . . . . . - . . . . . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
• . ' . • . . . ' • . . ' • . . . ' - • . . • . 

21. - - G. :Harms to Cohodes aml Unlawful Be11efits toSnowdy 

22 ·, _ 8J. -_ As a_ direct and proximate result of Snowcif sand Guy's unlawful conduct~ 
• . . • . . . • . _- ... ' • . . . . . . .. ·_ . • . . . . - . . . 

23 . Snowdy an4 MiMedx unjustly benefitted and Cob.odes was damaged~· 

24 - 82 .• -- First, S_nowdy was unjustly enriched by the amount of $25~000 per month, plus -
• - . . . • . . . • • . • . . • ·.. • '.. ·.. . • .. '. ·.. . • . . • ·. . . -

• 25 • . expenses, that Guy paid Sriowdyt() lie to Cohodes, reco~d Coh()des' s phone conversatimis, _ 

- 26 disclose Cohodes's emails, anddefcJllle Cohodes to third parties.' 
. • . . • . - . : . . : . • . . • . . - . ' : . . • • . • 

• ·: 27 8j. • - - Second; _Snowdy was also unjust1Yenriched by the amounts that MiMedx or other.· 

28 
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• · >l. third parties paid him, wholly or partly in reliance on Snowdts past s~ccess intinlawfully: •• 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - . - . . 

.. 2 • obtainingCohodes's e111ails and phone calls, to surveil Cohodesotto seekaccessto Cohodes's .. 

3 • confidentilll communications again. 
. . . . - . . . . . . . . -

4 • 84 .. · .• Third,by spying on.Cohodes 'arid obtaining infonnation about him unlawfillly; 

• • • 5 Mi.Medx, Petit, ancl Tay lot were aple to persuade some market participants and regulatory . 
- . . . . . . . . . . . - . . . -

. . . . . . • - .• - • . . . - . . - • . • . . . . ' . 

• 6 • agencies; at least temporarily, thatthey were·victims of securities fraud rather than perpetrators • 
. : .: . .: .. . .. 

. ' . . - . - . 

. • . . 1 . of it, which allow~ci them to retain the benefits of their illegal conduct: : . . • • 
- . . . - . . . 

85: •• • Fourth, Cohocleswas directly harmed in that~among other harms,:· · •• 8 

9 Snowdy unlawfully and improperly obtained access to Cohodes;s home, as • 
. . . 

10 •. a trespasser; • 

. 11 ·b. . Snowdy unlawfully and improperly obtained access:toCohodes's private 
. . . . . . . . . . . -- . - . . - . . . . . . 

• : i2 business information c;oncemingCohodes's lawful efforb{to expose fraucl and questionable.···< 

13 accounting at Concordia arid at Badger Daylighting, among other companies; . 
. . . . . . - . . . . . . . . . . . ' . . - . . . . . . . . 

• •• 14 c. · < • Snowdy,undermined _and_interfer~d:with Cohodes's 1awfule_fforts to expose . 

15. fraud and questionable accountingat Concordia and at BadgerDaylightmg, among other_.·. 
. . . . . . . . ' . - . . . 

· : : 16· companies~· by disclosing Cohodes' s emails· and -phone calls to· third parties;. 
. . . . ' - -

17 d: • .. • Snowdy unlawfully invaded Cohodes' s privacy by obtaining access to his • 

. -: 18 home ·and recording his phone calls; and ·•. 

e. >Sno~dy defamed Cohodes and harmed him m his professional reputation 
- . . - . . - . . . 

20. by :asserting~. contrary to fact, th~t Cohodes was a :criminal, a stock manipulator~ a tax evader, ••. 

2.1 

•. 22 

23 

24 

• 25 

_and a money launderer~ • 

· •· FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
'. . . . . . . - . - . . 

.. Violation of the California Invasion of Privacy Ad Under California Penal.Code§ 632.7: 
. Against All Defendants : 

. ' ' . : . . . . '. . ~ • . • . . • . . : 

. 86-.• • .Plaintiffrepeats.and reallegesparagraphs 1-:- 85. 
- . . . - . . . . . 

• . 87; · •. As. part of a scheme to accuse Cohodes and other short sellers of supposed market • 

• 26 • manipulation, Defendant Guy em.ployed Defendant Snowdy in October 2015 for the purpose of 
. . . . . . ' . - . - . - -

: 27 surveilling Plaintiff Cohodes, a California resident. 

28 
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. - ' .•.. · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• . 88; .... As part ofthis·scheme,Snowdy engagedin>cellularorcordless telephone•.· 
. . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 

. 2 cominuilicatioris with Cohodes to g~ther information .• 

89; •. • From 2016 and into 2018; Snowdy intentionally record dozens ofcellular or· . • 

•.· 4 cordless telephone communications between himselfand Cohodes. All ofCohodes's telephone • •• 

• .. ·: 5 communications with Snowdy were made using Cohodes's cellul~ phone .. 
. . . ' . . . . . . ' . . 

6 • 90; • At no time did Snowdy inform Cohodes that their ceHuiat or cordless telephone • • 
.: : .: .. .: .: .• .; .: .• .. . . . . . . ' . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . 

• 7 . communications were being recorded; and at no.point did Cohodes consent to the recording of .• 
• . . • . . . • . 

8. · the conimu:ri.ications. · • 
. .. ' ,: . • .• : : . 

. . . . . . . 

9 • • . 91. • Snowdy' s recording of Cohodes 'sphone callsartd his· efforts to surveil Cohodes . 

• IO . were all undertaken:at_the directio~ of Guy, whHe acting as Guy'~agent or employee .. • •• 
. . 

11 • 92. -. Begmning in Decemb~r 2017, Snowdy's recording ofCohodes's phone calls and •· · 
. . . . . . . . . . . . 

• 12 • his efforts to surveii Cohod.es were also uildertaken at the direction ofMiMecbt, while acting.as : 

. I~ . MiMedx's agent or .employee.· .. •• 

•• : 14 . . 93: • . From 2016 to 2019, • Cohodes rem~ilied a •Californi~ resident and California • 
. • . • . • • . • • . •.. : . • . . • . • • . . . • . . : . . • ~. • . • • ' . : • . . • . . • • . . - • • ' . . . • . • . . 

15 citizen, and Snowdyis~ Guy's, and MiMedx's surveillance of him were directed athim in • 

16 . California. • 

17 •• • 94 .. • • Cohodes ffr~t became aware_ that Snowdy.had ~ec~rded their cellular or cordless • 

· 18 telephone communications when,jnMay202l, documents-produced in a series ofCanadian • 

19 lmvsuits were unsealed by the Ontario. Superior Court of Justice: • • 
. . • . . •. . . . • . • • . . . . .. - '. . . 

. . . . . . . . . . 

•. 20. · 95. •• As a· California resident; CQhodes is guaranteed a right to privacy by not only the 
. .-.· . -. . ·.· . ·. . . . . . . . ·. .. ·. ,· . ·. . . . . . 

• 21 • California Constitution, but also by Califoi;nia Penal Code § • 630 et seq. : California Penal Code. •• 

'.22 § 63 7 .2 ~ ~ Section bf the California Invasion of Priva~y Act - provides a civil cause of act1ori 
. ·. . ·. ·. . ,· ·.· ' . . . -: -. • <. . .· . . . .· . ·.· . -: .· .. ·. . ' .. ' -: ·.· . 

23 . ag~iilst those who record a communicationbefureeri a cellular or cordless telephone and another 
. ·. . . . ' . . 

24 telephone without the _consent of all parties i11 ·violation t>f California Penal Code § 632. 7. 
. . . . . . . ' ' . . . . 

• 25 • CaHfornia Penai Code:§ 6}7 .2 fixes the amount o:f damages re~overable: at $5,000 per violation~•: . 

26 . 96. • California Penal Code § 63 7 .2 further entities Plaintiff Cohodes to bring an action 
. . . . . . -

27 · to· enjoin and restrain any violation of .California P·enal Code § 630, et seq .• 
28 
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. . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

•. 97; · • • By recording dozeris • of cellular or cordless telephone conversations with Cohodes 
.. ' . . . . . . •• •• . . . . . . : . . . . . . . . .. 

.. 2 without hislmowledge or consent; Snciwdy, Guy, andMiMedx violated California Penal Code 

· . >3 § 632.7.: :· • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
• . .• . . . . • . • . . ' .• . . • • . . • . . . • . . . .• . '. . . . . .· . 

4 98 .. ··.As tlle direct and proximateresult ofDefondants' violaticm.s ofCaliforcia Penal • 

5 • Code§ 632.7~ PlaintiffCohodeshas suffered damages and ongoing irreparable ha.mi inthe form .. • 

6 • of invasion of privacf • 
. . . . . . . . . 

99. • As adirectresult ofSnowdy's unlawful recording ofCohodes's phone calls; -

• 8 :snowdy has been· unjllstly enriched, including but riotHmited to the $25,000 petriionth!hat he 

. 9 . was p;:i.id by Guy, ancl all sums thathe was paid by MiMedx, 
.. •.. . . ' . . •• • . . ·.... . . . .•. . .· . . . . . . . . .·.. . . . • . 

• 10. - • . -100. Each ofthe:Defendants acted with malice, fratid,.and oppression, suchtliat 

• 11 • Coho des i~; entitled to punitive damages .• _ 

• · 12 · 

· 13 

14 -

15 

.-SECOND.CAUSEOF:ACTION·.· 
Violation ·o_f tlie Wiretap Act (18 U.S.C. §§ 2511) 

• • • · AgainstAH Defendants • • • • 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• • • : 1()1: • Plaintiff repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 ~ 1_00. . • 
' .: . • ' • . r • . 

102; ._ TheElectronicConimunications Privacy Act, 18U.S.C. §§ 2510, etseq .. 
. . . . . 

: 16 · {''ECP A'") •broadly defines an "efoctronic communication'' as_ "any tr.ansfer ·of signs, signal~; _ .. 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

• • 17 writing, images, sounds, data, or. intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or. in part by a .• • 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . ' . . . 

• : • 18 • wire, radio, electroil1agnetic; photoelectronic m photooptical system that: affects interstate or _ • : 

• • 19 • foreign commerce:.·;." 18 U.S.C. §2510(12). • 

• 103. ECPA also broadly defines the contents of a communication. Pursuant to ECP A; • · 
.. ·. .' .· . . .· • • .• •. · .· .·. .· .. ·. .' • • .· .• •. · •. · . • . 

• 21 • "contents". of a c·ommunication, when used with respect to any wire, oral, or ele(;tronic • .. 

22 • communications, fuclude any information concerning the substance, purport, or meaning of that 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 

communication.· 18 u.s;c. § 2510(8); 

• 104~ •. PartofECPA'istheWiretapAct, 18 U.S.C; §2511, whichprohibitsthe • 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

·• 25 · • interception and disclosure of wire, oral; ·and elebtronic communications. Although the,Wiretap •• 

• 26 • Act ·generally only requires. the consent of one party to a comniU11ication to record the 

• 27 • co~munication, a party may not record a c9mmunication for the purpose of committing any 

28 
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' . . . . 

1 criminal or tortious act in violation of federal or state law; 18 U.S.C. § 2511(2)(d). _ 
. . . . . . . ' . . . . • • . . . 

_ 2 105, -The Wiretap Act also provides a civil cause of action for any person whose wire or 

• 3 electronic communications have been intercepted, disclosed~ or intentionally used in violation of 

4 

5 

6 

18 U.S.C. § 2511;as well as for the disclosure muse of the contents of such intercepted 

communications. : 
. . . 

106. Cohodes's cellular phone calls with Snowdy are. "electronic communications"_ 

1 under ECP A. -
. . . 

• 8 107. ·_ At no tiine did Snowdy inform Cohodes that telephone communications were 

9 being recorded, and at no point did Cohodes consent to the recording of the communications. 
- . . ' 

10 : 108; - Snowdy's recording of Cohodes's phone calls and his efforts to surveil Cohodes 

11 were all u~dertaken at the direction of Guy, while acting as Guy's agent or employee .. - • 

12 109. Beginning in December 2017, Snowdy's recording of Cohodes's phone calls and 
. . 

13 . his efforts to surveil Cohodes were also undertaken at the direction of MiMedx, while acting as -• 

-14 MiMedx's agent or employee. 
, . . , , • . . .• • . ' . . 

. . . . 

. 15 110. From 2016 to 2019;Cohodes remained a California resident and California 

• 16 citizen, and Snowdy's, Guy's, and MiMedx's surveillance of him was directed at him in 

_ 17 California. 

_ 18 111. Snowdy later disclosed the contents of at least one of those calls to lawyers and·: _ 
. . . . . . . . . . . 

19 executives at Catalyst. On information and belief, Snowdy also disclosed the contents of those 

. _ 20 - calls to MiMedx. -
. . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . 

21 -112. _ - Even_ if Snowdy himself consented to recording the -conimumcatioris, he and Guy 
. . . . . . . 

' . , . . , . . ' 

22 violated 18 U.s:c. § 2511(2)(d) because he recorded the cails for the purpose of committing : 

23 defamation and false light invasion of privacy, both torts under California law. In addition, Guy 

24 and MiMedx•violated 18 U.S.C. § 2511(2)(d) because Snowdy recorded calls on behalf of 
. . . 

. . . . . . . . ' . . . , 

• • 25 MiMedx for the purpose of concealing and continuing MiMedx's, Petit's, and Taylor's ongoing 

26 · securities fraud, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b) and 15 U.S.C. § 78ff(as well as other federal 
. . . . . . . , . . . . . . . 

27 and state securities las and regulations), and for the purpose of defaming Cohodes. -

28 
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• •. 1 l3. • As the direct and proximate result of Snowdy' s intentionalrecording and > 
- .. . - . ' .... - . ' - . 

.. 2 disdosure.ofcohodes's cellular telephone calls,·cohodes has sriffereddairiages.: .•• 

3 • 114. As a:directresult ofSnowdy's unlawful recording:of Cohodes's.phone calls, 

•. 4 Snowdy has h~enunj~stiYenriched; including but not limited to the $25,000 pernionththat he .• · 

· · 5 • was paid :by Guy, and all s~s that he was paid by MiMedx. • 
. ' . . . . . . . . -

J 1 s: Defendants acted with malice, fraud, arid oppression, such thafCohodes is entitled • 

. 7 . fo punitive damages. 

8 

• . 9·. 

10. 

. 11 

. . . 

. . . THIRD. CAUSE OF ACtION . 
Defamation -:- Slander Under California Civil Code § 46 . · · • 

. . • . . AgainstDeferi.darits Snowdy and Guy • • 
. . . . . - . ' . . . . - . - . ' . . . . . . 

116; ·. .Plaintiff repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 ~ U 5; • 
.. . . . . . . 

117; ·. • As alleged above;. in. his. written and oral communications with Glassman and . · • 

12 • Catalyst;s attorneys; Guy made numerous false assertions of fact that were intended to, and had .• . 
. . 

13 . the effect of, portraying Cohodes as a criminal,. actively conspiring with other criminals to . 
- . - . . . . 

. . - - . ' ' 

•• 14 manipulate public securities. markets and launder ID,Oney.·· 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . 

• . . . . ' . . . . . . - . . - . . . . . . • . • . 

·11s.· .·_As aUeged above, in oral.conimunicaticins with Catalyst's.attorneys and advisors,.· 

• • • 16 Snowdy made ntimerous~false assertions of fact that were intended to, arid had the effect.of, 

17 portraying.Cohod~s as,a.crithinal,actively conspiring with bther criminaJstorn.anipulatepuhlic· •• 

• 18 • se_curities markets, launder money, and evade taxes. With respect to the statements by Snowdy,•· 
. . . . . . . - - - . . - - . . . - . . . . . . . .. 

• 19 • • he made therri atthe direction of Guy, while acting as Guy's agent or employee: • 

.. 20 119. Guy:s and S116wdy'sstatements and their implications of criminal behavior by . 
. . . 

• 21 • Cohodes were :false . 
. • . • .:. . . .: . . . . ", .. _ .:. .:. ··, .: 

120. • At the tirrie they each made these statements, Guy and Snowdy knew they were • 
. . . • • . . . •. . '.. . . •.• . ·.. •.• . . . 

• 23 .· false and unsubstantiated. · 

24 121: •. •. Snowdy was irtcentivized to. claim that Cohodes was acting iHegally in order tci stir • ' 
. . . . . . . . . . 

25 . ~p interesdn the calls he ·had. recorded betweeri him and Cohod~~ withotit cons~nt For ••• 

· 26 example, if Catalyst believed tpaf Cohodes was. making illegaltrades qr attemptihg to. · •· 
. . . . . . . . . . 

• 27 ma11ipulate the securities m.arket,•thenit stands to .reason that Catalyst would pay a hefty sum for 

28 
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· 1 . irtformatioh on Cohodes's next.moves.··.·•. 
. . . . . . - -

122. The statements Snowdy made to Rlley, :Lutes,arid Philiips were defamatory. 

·: : 3 Riley,: Lutes, and Phillips µnderstood Snowdy' s :statem~nts (1 )to: mean that Coh6des was 

• .. 4 par.tidpating· in ill~gal activities 1apd (2) to damage Cohodes' s reputation as an investor .. 

• ·12}.. Likewise, Snowdy1s_ statements· were unprivileged.· The· lawyers to_ whom Snowdy. 

6 • niacie the ~tatements were Catalyst's lawyers, not Snowdy.;s, and:no privilege applies to :· • 

• 7. . Snowdy' s false statements.· 

• 8 · 124· .•. (fay's andSnowdy's statements to. Giassrriari and to Catalyses lawyers accused · ••• 
. . - . . . . . . - . -

9 Cohodes ofconimitting a crime; arid consequently constitute libel per :Se~ • 

• 1 o • . 125. : At the time that Snowdy made these statements, he and Guy knew that Catalyst . • 
. . . . . . 

11 • was preparing to file lawsuits aga:inst investors claiming that those investors had illegally ·. • 
. . ' ' - . . . . . - . . ' . . . 

• • 12 n1ahipulateci the· shares of Callidus. Cons¢queritly, Snowdy ancl Guyk11ew, or had reason to • 

· 13 · know, thattheirfalse statements would likely be repeated in the litigation and disseminated toa 
. . . . . . . . . - . . 

14 . wider audience, which is what iri fact occurred: • • • 

15. 126 .• • As the direct and proximate result of Guy's and Snowdy's statements, Cohodes . · •• 

• · 16 has suffered injury to his professional reputation:: 
. - .. ·. ' . • .- .· •. ·• .· .• . - - • _.· . . .· .• . _ .. • _.· .· .· - .· .• _,.· . _ .. • .· . 

.17 • 127.· • ·Guy.and Snowdy acted with malice, fraud, and oppression, such that Cohodesis 
. . . . . . -

. •: 18 entitled to punitive .damages;· 
. . . . . . . . . . 

19 • • FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION · •• 
.. -- . .. . 

• · .20 · . False Light Invasicm of Privacy 
. ..· _.· .. · Against_Defond~nts Snowdy and Guy 

12~. •· Plairltiffrepeats and reaUeges paragraphs t-127; • 21 

• •. 22. 
• 129.. The Galifornia Constitution guarantees the right to privacy; Cal. Const. art I, § 1.: 

• 23 . This right t~ p~ivacy protects the citizens of Cal1f'omia from, among other things, being : . 

24 • portraye~ ~o other individuals in a faise light, · • • 
25. 

26 

27 

28 

• 130 .•. ]?uring his n1eeting•s with Catalyst'slawyers_ and executives; Snowdy repeatedly • •• • 
- . . . . . . . -.. .. .. . .. . ' . .. 

asserted that Cohodes was involved in illegal market manipulation; •..• • • 
- - • ' ·. - • - , . • : ·. - : ·. • - -: . ._ • - .: . . . . - . . -

. . . . . . 

. 131. ·• For.example, in his Septemberl2, 20l7·meeting, Snowdy claimedhe had fed: 

• • . COJMPLJUNT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
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• 1 Cohodes Concordia Healthcare's 2016Q4 numbers with slight alterations. Snowdy th~n stat~d • 
• • . . •••.. · - • - . - ..•. · .• .- . ' • • • - • - .• .. _ .... - - •. • •.. • . . 

. -2 that~ two days before those numbers were made public, Cohodes. shorted Concordia's stock 

-.. 3 based on the altered information Snowdy fed him. 
. . ' . - . . . - - - . - . . 

4 - 132 .• These statements by Sriowdy were false or created a false impression about• -

• _- • _5 Co:h.odes.: To start, Snowdy's statements falsely state· or hnply that Collodes's investing strategy 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . . . 

• 6 • relies on illegal marketnianipulation schemes or n~npublic inform.~tion: fu reality, Cohodes has • 
. • .: . ' . ._ . .. • . .. _ . .·_ . - .·_ .:_ : . .:_ 

. 7 . long been a successful inv~stor because, through careful analysis; he canidentify companies that • 

-- 8 - are· overvalu.ed or may "be conducting fraudulent or otherwfse illegaf a6tivities. -Thrm1ghout his 

_ 9 career,.Cohodes-has worked with law enforcement to provide relevant information for 

• 10 investigations.- And by pl~yiilg some or all of a September 6, 2017 recording at the September• 

11 • 12, 2017 meeting, Snowdy intended to suggest that Cohodes improperly"m unlawfully harassed • 

• • 12 - compan1esiike Badger.· Tliese-nnplications were false. ·• • 
. . . . . . . . . . ' . . 

. 13. 133; _ Sno\\<'dy;s statements were U11derstood by Catalyst's·la~ets? executives, and 

14 private itivestigatdrs.:... Naomi Lutes, Jim Iqley, John Phillips, and Peter Barakett .:...·to imply that 
- - . - . - . . . . - . . . - . . - . . . 

15 _ Coho des had no respect for the rule oflaw and thafhe was involved in illegal investing schemes, 

•• 16 iricludirig market_manipulation and investing based on nonpublic information. 
. . • • ' . . . - . • . - . ' • • • . . - - . . . • 

17 134. -- Likewise, in the SeptembetJ2, 2017 meeting Snowdy mischaracterized the actuaL • 

• • _ 18 • erriail communications between. Cohodes and Levitt to· falsely suggest that Cohodes was• __ 
. . . . . . 

-19 • manipulathlg the securities market arid the. whistle blower system .. Catalyst's investigators from • • 
. _; . . . . ,; 

. . . . . . . . . . 

. _ 20_ - Black Cub~ believ.ed and acted upon that mischar.acterization. • _ _ _ 
- . . . . . - . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2i 135; ·- i\tthe time that Snow.dy made these statements, he and Guy knew thatCatalyst 

22 _ was preparing to fil~ l~wsuits ~gairist investors 'Claiming that those investors had illegally 
. . . . . . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' '. . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

manipulated the· sllare~ of Callidus: ·_Consequently, Snowdy and Guy knew,· or had reason to ·23 

24 know, that their false statements would likely be repeated. in the litigation and disseminated to a·. . 
. . . . . 

. . ·.. • . ,'.. '' . . . . . .• . • . ,· 

- 25 wider audience; which is what in fact occurred. • 

-26· 136; ._ -As the direct and proximate result of Sno:wdy's statements; Cohodes has suffered·· 
. . 

• 27 - irijU:ry to his professional reputatfon. -

28. 

- C01v1PLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF -
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137.· .• Guy:~d Sriowdy acted with malice, fraud, and oppressiori,·suchthat·cohodes is·::· 
. . . -

2 entitled to pun.itive dam.ag~s. • 

•. 3 

4· 

5 

6 

7 

•• Fifth CAUSE OF ACTION • • 
• Trespass 

· . ·, • Against J)efendant Snowdy . • • 
- . . - . . . . 

138. . Plaintiff repeats andrealleges paragraphs 1-13_7 .. •·: 

13 9 .. -•• In 2016; Snowdy visit~d the librrie Cohodes_ owned.in Sonoma County;. California ... • 

• 140. Snowdy obtainedCohodes's consent to enter and remain on Cohodes's property•·: 

•• 8 by falsely holding hiriiself out as·~ person who was adverse to Concmdi~ and-Concotdia;s CEO ••. 
. . . . . . . . . . . - , . . . .. - , . - ' .. 

9 • Thmnpsort and aligned with Cohodes, when in fact Snowdy h~d been hir~d to spy on Coll.odes .. 

: 1 O • ·and 1,1tt~mpt to: gath~r .ividence that Cohod~s was a, criminal. : • 

11 •. 14i • • Cohodes would not have allowed S~owdyto enter or remain on his property, but_ - • 

: 12 • for Snowdy' s material misrepr~s~ntations· and ~missicms. • • • 

13 

• •· 14 
142: •. As a direct result of the trespass, Snowdy Was able to gain access to Cohodes and··. 

establish a relati~riship with him, which he then used to record Cohodes's pho~e calls andto 

. 15. • · · · · obtain his ·emails, ·causing him further harin. · 
' • . . • . ' • . ' . • . • - . - . . . - . • . - - • . • -

143. . Guy Md Sn,owdy acted with- malice: fraud, 1,1nd oppression, such tlw.t Cohodes is : : : 

17 entitled to punitive damages. 
-. > 18 • · PRAYE.RFORRELIEF. · · 

· 19. . • - . • ~- . • - . . . - - . • . ' • - . • • - . 

• • •. WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Cohodes .respectfully prays for judgment in his favor against· 

• 20-• Defendants MiMedx,'. Snowdy, and Guy as follows: • 
• . 2.1 

. . 

· :- _ 22 

- - 23. 

24 

25. 

26 

.27 

28 

- . - - . - . . . . . - . . . . . - . . ' . - - . . . . . . . . . - . - . . . 

a .. • • Damages in .the a,mountof $5,000 per violation of <=:alifornia Penal Code § 632; 7; .. -

• b. ·. · For all remedies specified in the Wiretap Act, 18 U.S.C.-§ 2520;includintlthe sum . 
. ' . . . • . • . .. . . - . . • . • - . . . - • • . • ' . 

-• •. of actual damages .suffered by Plaintiff and any profits ~ade by Defendants as: a • 
. . . . . . . . . ' . . . . . . . , . . . 

• result oftheviolations or statutory damages· as authorized by 18 U;S.C. . . ., . . . . . . . - . . 

§' 2520(2)(13)~ wliichever is greater;: .··_ • 
.. . . .. . . 

c. • ·coinpens8:tory damages accorqing to proof at trial; 

: d. • • ·•· Punitive damages in•an amount sufficient to pumshDefendants' irrongful conduct-

• COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF • 
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5· 
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7 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

•• 14 

15 

16 

17 

. . . 

t_ase 3:22"'.cv-:-00368-JD . Document 1 Filed 01/19/22 •• Page 31 of 32 . 

and to deter future misconduct; 
. . . 

e. The return of all documents, information, and data thatDefendants unlawfully 

obtained from Cohodes; 
. . • . .• .· . . . • . . • . • . .·. .• . . 

f. • • • Disgorgement of all_ sinns that Snowdy obtained from Guy, MiMedx, or any other. · 

pers~n or entity as a result of his violations of Cohodes's rights; 
. . - . . 

g ..• • .• .· Permanent injunctive relief enjoining Defendant Snowdy from recording the • 
' . . . . . 

cellular or cordless telephone communications of Plaintiff Cohodes without the 

consent of all parties to those communications; .. 

Permanent injunctive relief enjoining Defendant Guy or his agents:from recording 
.. . . . . . '. . . ' . . . . . . . 

• · ·. the cellular. or cordless telephone communications of Plaintiff Cohodes without the 

consent of all parties to those communications; • 

i. Permanent injunctive relief enjoining Defendant MiMedx from recording the 
- . 

cellular or cordless telephone communications of PlaintiffCohodes without the 

• consent of all parties to those communications; 
. . . . 

' . . . . 

J. Costs and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in this action;· and 
. . ' . 

. . . 

k. Such other relief as the Court may deem just and proper: . 

._ 18 • Dated: January 19, 2022 Respectfully submitted, 

19 

.20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28. 

THE NORTON LAW FIRM PC 

By: Isl Fred Norton .. 
• Fred Norton . . 

Attorneys for Plaintiff .. • 
Marc Cohodes 

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
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:DEMAND FOR:JURYTRIAL • • 
• · .. _- .• .. ·, .• , ,·· .· •. · .. ·. .·. . .. · . . .·. .· .• .. · .• . . .. · 

• :Pursuant to.Civil Loc~l Rule3.;.6 and Federal Rule. of Civil Procedure 38, Pia1ntiffMar~ 

. ,. . .. : 3 Coho des hereby: demands a trial by ajury .. on all issues tdable by a jury. •·. 

• .. 4 

. : 5. Dated: January_ 19, 2022 • 

6 

7. 

• 8. 

9 

10 

. 11 

12 

13 

14 · 

. ·15. 

: •• 16·. 

17 

·.: 18 • 

19 

20. 

21 • 

· •. 22 . 

• 23 

24 

•. •25 

26 

·27 

28 

• •. : Respectfully submitted; 
. . . . 

· THE NORTON LAW FIRM PC .. •• 

By: . Isl Fred Norton. 
• • • Fred Norton 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
MARC COHODES · • 

• COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF .• · .• 
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